The Tavern at Cedar Bridge:  A Chronology of Ownership
Summarized Early Recorded History:


December 4, 1712


Jonathan Fox of Great Britain conveyed to Thomas and [295 years ago]


William Fox 1/15 of a proprietary of land to be laid out in 





the 3rd or 4th tenths (Burlington or Gloucester counties) in 





West Jersey.


August 5, 1743


The Council of Proprietors issued a warrant for 333.5 acres 





(the unsurveyed half of the 1/15 propriety).

October 8, 1743


Jonathan and Thomas Fox (William being 







deceased) conveyed 283 1/3 acres to John Morrow (all 





parties of New Hanover Township, Burlington County).






From October 1743 to November 1766, deeds were either 





not recorded or were lost.  However, from a subsequent 





deed, it appears that the property passed from John Morrow 




to Thomas Foulkes and then later to John Middleton of 





Nottingham Township, Burlington County.  
November 16, 1799


Jon Middleton provides in his will the use of the farm and 





improvements at “Sedar” Bridge for his his on, Joel 






Middleton, until Joel’s death, at which time it is to be sold 





by the executors.   Based on the reference to 







“improvements,” it is surmised that the building was 





constructed sometime between 1761 and 1799.  

May 10, 1813



The 101 acres were conveyed to Isaiah Heisler for 






$1,149.30. Later, on February 23, 1816, Joel Middletown 





gave a quitclaim deed to Heisler to the remainder of the 





property known as Cedar Bridge.   It was probably at about 





this time that it became a tavern and stagecoach stop.

February 1816 – May 1926

The land was bought and old to a number of people.  

1926 - 1959



Check most recent title search.

1959 – December 27, 2007

Rudolf Koenig has owned and preserved this historic 





property.  

